BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
March 29, 2005
Kahului Community Center
CONVENE:

6:02 p.m.

PRESENT:

Councilmember Dain P. Kane, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson, Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Member (In@6:09p.m.)
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Member

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member

STAFF:

Carla Nakata, Substitute Legislative Attorney
Jo-Ann Sato, Substitute Committee Secretary

ADMIN.:

John Buck, Deputy Director, Department of Parks and Recreation
Pat Rocco, Central District Supervisor, Department of Parks and Recreation

OTHERS:

Lori Dodd, MEO Youth Bank
Heidi Kalehuawehe, Unit Director, Boys & Girls Club - Paukukalo
Kahealani Ogitani, Boys & Girls Club - Paukukalo
Dougie Chong, Boys & Girls Club - Paukukalo
Dustin Adams, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Colin Hanlon
Isaiah Kapoi, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Brandon Antonius, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Richard Perreira, Boys & Girls Club Central
Koree Ho' opi 'i, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Olivia Apolo, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Joanne Cabrinha, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Kalei Ho 'opi'i Pascua, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Kawika Mattos, Unit Director, Boys & Girls Club - Central
Jim Crowe, Program Director, MEO Youth Bank
Kayla Forde, MEO Youth Bank
Arianna Kapoi, MEO Youth Bank
Ian Wayne Lee, MEO Youth Bank
Andre P. Namoku, MEO Youth Bank
Amy Maeda, MEO Youth Bank
Mary Anne Doane-Mau

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005 (Kahului)

Natalie Akiyama
Isla Yap - Project EAST
Kellie Holliday - Project EAST
Justin Wolfe - Project EAST
Lurline Makahanaloa, - Project EAST
Jody Dias, - Project EAST
Aaron King, - Project EAST
Tiffany Balala - Project EAST
Jacob Davis - Project EAST
Alex Brauer - Project EAST
Kyle Souza - Project EAST
Jamie Musshorn - Project EAST
Nancy Brauer - Project EAST
Nelson Okumura, Board Member, Maui Food Bank
Cheyene Evangelista, Program Coordinator, Kahi Kamali'i Infant Toddler
Center
Michele Frendo Recupuerto, Infant Toddler Specialist, Kahi Kamali'i Infant
Toddler Center
Mary Farnworth, Infant Toddler Specialist, Kahi Kamali'i Infant Toddler Center
Monika Irwin, Infant Toddler Specialist, Kahi Kamali'i Infant Toddler Center
Carol Sutton
Nathan Cutler, Secretary, Hale Mahaolu Elima Club
Susana Browne, Education Director, Maui Arts & Cultural Center
Vincent Mina, President, Maui Aloha Aina Association
Lisa Schattenburg Raymond, Maui Nui Botanical Gardens
Debra Johnson, Chief Executive Officer, Maui Food Bank
Georgia Norton, President, Maui Humane Society Board of Directors
John Alison
Janis von Thaden, Member, Hui No 'eau Visual Arts Center
Tannis Grimes, Development Officer, Hui No 'eau Visual Arts Center
Ora Latham
John V. Duey
H. Jeanne Kenlon
Deidre Tegarden, Executive Director, Big Brothers/Big Sisters-Maui
Nathan Kimura, Textron Systems - MEDB
Clark Nakamoto, President, Kahului Senior Citizens Club
Aurora Young
Lisa Darcy, Hale 0 Lanakila
Lisa Rodrigues
Peter Sayer, Hana Canoe Club
Lucienne deNaie, Vice President, Maui Tomorrow
Jeff Reiss, Peletex
Jan Dapitan, Community Work Day Program
Additional attendees (12)

-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005 (Kahului)

PRESS:

ITEM NO. 1:

!lima Loomis, The Maui News

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance meeting
for March 29, 2005, in the evening, at Kahului Community Center. For the record, we
have our Kahului representative, Council member Joe Pontanilla, who's going to provide
the introductions this evening. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Budget Chair Dane Kane. Good evening,
ladies and gentlemen. It is my pleasure to introduce to you my fellow colleagues in the
Maui County Council. To my right, from Up country is Charmaine Tavares. To my far
left is, representing Hana, Member Robert Carroll; from the West Maui district, Jo-Anne
Johnson; from Lanai, Riki Hokama. Directly to my left is our Member from Molokai,
Danny Mateo, and presiding over the meeting is our Chairman Dane Kane from Wailuku.
CHAIR KANE: Good evening, everybody. Council member Molina is on his way, so he'll be
here in about ten minutes, so he apologizes for not being here right at six o'clock.
Obviously, we're a little cozy tonight, and we have to tell you that this is the first time
since I've been on the Council that we've been in Kahului. It's been a long time that
we've been in Kahului, so we felt it was a good thing to bring the meetings right down
into Central Maui and right into the core of Central, right here in Kahului. So, thank you
all for being here this evening.
If you do have a cell phone or a pager, we ask that you turn it to the off or to the silent

mode except for Officer Rodrigues who may be dealing with emergency calls. She can
leave anything on that she wants. Ladies and gentlemen, we have, a lot of people signed
up to testify this evening and by no means do we want to discourage anybody.
The Chair has been in the past and will continue to acknowledge our youngsters first.
We'll bring up our kids so that we can get them in and out, especially our, our very young
ones and their parents that are with them. Some of you will see directors along with a
group of people. We're going to include them as part of the kids as well, because it's the
programs that, that are looking for assistance and we'd like to hear from them.
So, at this time we're going to try our best. We have an order, couple of things: first,
we're providing you with a total of four minutes. At three minutes, our staff member will
say, three minutes, so you don't have to stop right there. You can just acknowledge that
you heard the three minutes; and at that point if you can, please, start to wrap up your
comments. At four minutes if you're continuing, I will jump in when you take a breath
and again it's not to be rude or anything. But keep in mind there's a lot of people here
tonight, and we don't want some people who are at the end of the line waiting till ten,
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eleven, twelve at night, because people want to keep on going. So, we want to provide
everybody equal time and equal opportunity to present their testimony.
Make sure that you do state your name for the record. Weare recording these
proceedings tonight, and we're here to listen to your comments regarding the Mayor's
proposed budget for the 2006 Fiscal Year. And that, we have copies sitting right up here,
so if you don't have a copy already, please feel free to come forward and get your copy.
And you can provide comments to any component of that budget that is being proposed,
and it's in the Council's hands at this time for deliberations.
With that we'll go ahead and start up. I know I have a couple of young children in here.
If I start reading through my list here, I know I'm going to have some of the
non-youngsters. So, why don't we go ahead and grab a couple of.. .if you can raise your
hand if you have really young ones, elementary school, preschool kids, we'd like to bring
you forward and recognize you. Okay.
So at this time, folks, a little bit of discretionary authority, forgive me. Please come
forward ma'am and then if you can following come forward, please. And make sure you
state your name, so we can get your, get you recorded. Unless you're going to decide to
stay to the end then you gotta, you gotta stay in line then. Thank you. Go ahead. I think
it is checked, go, testing .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. DODD: Aloha, Mr. Chair and fellow Council Members. My name is Lori Dodd. I have a
16-year-old son Keaka that's been with the MEO Youth Bank since he was in seventh
grade. I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for allowing me to address you
and to ask ... speak more loud?
CHAIR KANE: Forgive me. Yeah. If you can step forward closer to the mike, so everybody
can hear, please.
MS. DODD: Start again?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Go ahead, please. We'll start you all over.
MS. DODD: Aloha, Mr. Chair and fellow Council Members ...
CHAIR KANE: Let's check our sound. Carla, it's not. .. try just do a sound check, please.
Thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Testing, testing, the testifier's mike.
CHAIR KANE: Can we get some volume then? Maybe if there's volume. We'll take care of it,
folks.
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MS. DODD: Testing, testing.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. We need to go a little bit.
MS. DODD: I can use my Portagee [sic] mouth.
MS. NAKATA: Testing the testifier's mike.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Testing.
CHAIR KANE: And I think Council member Carroll has a booming voice, so just in case he has
any questions, we won't worry about not hearing him. Thank you very much. Lori, go
ahead.
MS. DODD: Aloha, Mr. Chair and fellow Council Members. My name is Lori Dodd. My
16-year-old son Keaka has been with the MEO Youth Bank since he was in the seventh
grade. I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for allowing me to address you
and to ask for your continued support of the MEO Youth Bank.
The Youth Bank has been an important part of my son's and my family's life. It has had
such a positive influence and effect on him. Being a single mother, working full-time
and raising three children is extremely hard.
This program has been a big benefit and has benefited my son in ways that I may not
have been able to. It has challenged him and taught him many skills that are a benefit to
him now and for his future. I have noticed so many positive changes in my son. His
socialization skills, self-esteem and self-confidence have risen a great deal.
Duke, Donna, Denise, Jim and the rest of the staff are really great. Duke teaches, talks
to, listens, challenges and supports my son in ways that a mom can't do. This program
has been a godsend to me and my children.
Watching over the years being raised here all my life and seeing how Maui has changed,
I'm really grateful for this program and programs like this. It keeps the kids off the
streets and steers them to positive things for their lives and now, for now and in their
future. I thank you for your support and ask for your continued support of this program.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Dodd. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you very much. Please, ma'am, come forward. Excuse me, come. Is there
anybody else who has elementary school kids that would like to come forward? Please
be recognized or else we're going to be going in a line, and if you're Number 60 you're
going to go at Number 60, so.
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MS. KALEHUAWEHE: Be careful, put it closer. Come on this side. Okay. Good evening
Council Members. My name is Heidi Kalehuawehe, and I'm the new unit Director for
Boys and Girls Club of Maui, Paukukalo Club. Our Club is located in the Hawaiian
Homes Community Center every day after school. On holidays and vacation times, we
share the community center with the Alu Like Kupuna program.
Although our Club is smaller than the other clubs we are growing. In the past three
years, our membership is at its highest point at 170 members with a daily average of
more than 50 youths a day. To date, we have not received any County funding and have
existed implementing programs with other funding sources. With this added growth this
year we are asking for County support.
Our Club has gained a lot of community support and credibility, and the Boys and Girls
Club of Paukukalo would like to continue to serve youths in this community. We would
also like to commend the volunteers that have come from the community to, to provide
added services needed to run programs such as our league coaches and community
service days. We have currently painted and maintained the Hawaiian Homes basketball
facility and the surrounding area.
Lastly, I would also like to mention to please support MEO Youth Transportation. Thank
you for giving us this opportunity, and please support the Boys and Girls Club of Maui,
Paukukalo Club.
MISS OGITANI: Aloha and good evening. My name is Kahealani Ogitani, and I go to Waihee
School. I am eight years old. I go to Boys and Girls Club in Paukukalo, because it is
fun-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: A little bit louder.
MS. KALEHUA WEHE: Little bit louder, right in there.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
MISS OGIT ANI: --and I get to meet and make new friends, and because Aunty Heidi, the
Director of my Club, is very nice and she helps us out a lot.
Coming to the Club means a lot to me, because I live with my grandma in the
community. About three or four years ago, I lost my daddy Shawn Kekona in an
accident, and my mommy moved to Honolulu. Ever since, me and my sister were left
behind with grandma. She took us, she took, she took us to Boys and Girls Club in
Paukukalo, so we can be around a lot of kids. Thank you and please support our Club.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any more comments? Go ahead. Just, yeah, state your name
and ...
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MR. CHONG: My name is Doug Chong and I go to Kamehameha Schools Maui campus, and
the Boys and Girls Club is like a positive place for kids. And I go there almost every
day, and Aunty Heidi and the other volunteers there they're really nice to me.
And that's what I like because like the other, like, I see a lot of kids around doing bad
stuff, and I encourage them to come. And then they come and then they get out of like
the drugs like that and then that's all I want to see, because I don't want drugs on Maui
and stuff like that. So, I just encourage you guys to support our Club.
CHAIR KANE: Right on.
Member Johnson.

Thank you.

Members, any questions for our testifiers?

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What is the amount of funding that you're requesting? Do
you have a specific dollar amount? Oh. I guess Mr., Mr. Hanlon will answer that one.
MR. HANLON: Sorry. My name is Colin Hanlon. I'm the Executive Director with the Boys
and Girls Club. That's a great question, Jo Anne. We've run the Cub the last three years
on a budget of $60,000 graciously, it was a three-year funding through Senator Inouye.
This is the final year of that funding.
It's going to take at least $60,000 to keep the Club the way it is, but we're looking at
multiple sources of funding not just the County of Maui to create that, because we're
actually looking to expand the budget next year.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing none. Ms. Kalehuawehe, thank you
very much. Thank you, kids.
Okay. So, we have a last chance for our younger ones, our elementary-school kids, who
are going to be testifying this evening. Any more elementary-school kids? Going once,
twice.
Kawika, aloha. Bring your kids up, no shame. You cannot hesitate. And remember,
please speak loudly, so we can all hear you, and state your name for the record. Go
ahead.
MR. ADAMS: Hi, my name is Dustin Adams and I've been going to the Boys and Girls Club
Central unit for six years. To me the Boys and Girls Club is like a second home, I feel
like I know everyone in there, from the workers to all of the members. When I go to the
Boys and Girls Club, I know I'm going to be in a good environment, because our Club
operates with 100 percent respect for each other, our property and all of our equipment.
The funding for the new building will be good for the Boys and Girls Club because the
building now is too small, because the youth in the center is growing rapidly in number
size. I think the center is a good asset to the community, because it keeps kids out of
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troubles, and they have a wide variety of programs for the members to have. They have
like a computer room, a dance room and a weight-lifting room.
If you guys do approve the funding for the new building, I know it'll be appreciated,
because it is expanding the cramped space that we have now. And now that, now if you
guys do approve it, the new space will be able to like appoint new activities and stuff.
Thank you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. KAPOI: My name-CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, bend it down, go ahead. Go ahead.
MR. KAPOI: --my name is Isaiah, I go to Boys and Girls Club. And what I like about Boys and
Girls Club that they ... (inaudible) ...that they, that the staff teach me how, how to hit the
balls at pool table and then teach me what, what is solids and what is stripes. Hundred
respect to the staff members, and then they might give, give 100 respect back to you.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Go ahead, boys.
MR. ANTONIUS: Hi. My name is Brandon. I've been going to Central Boys and Girls Club
for less than a year; and mostly, the Boys and Girls Club I go there almost every day.
And it's important because it teaches kids respect for everybody and properties and it
keeps most kids out of trouble. And the new building will also help the space that we
have, give us more activities and more things to do. And that's why I think the Boys and
Girls Club stuff is important.
The, the activities we have now are fun and active and they keep coming up with new
things. I've only been there for a little bit, and I feel like I know everybody there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. PERREIRA: Aloha. My name is Richard Perreira. I've been going to the Boys and Girls
Club for four years. When I've been there, they've been, have been changing, new kids
came and new kids have been going. But they usually always come back, because they
love the staff and they, what they do over there. And since I've been there, I've been like
helping out the staff, and I've been like going to church and like helping out over there at
the same time, but mostly at the Boys and Girls Club.
And the building over there, it's getting too small, because all the children are like
coming over there, coming back from where they used to be. And they being like, the
Boys and Girls Club actually got kids off the streets, and we like help out and do like fun
things over there. And I just want the new building to come out for they have more kids
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and more kids to come inside the new building. And I just want you guys to support the
Boys and Girls Club. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. HO'OPI'I: My name is Koree, I got to the Boys and Girls Club. Been going there for less
than a year, about like two months. And it's been, it's been exciting, there's a lot of
activities. They've been taking kids off the street, it's a good place, like another home for
a lot of kids. They go there after school instead of going home.
It helps them with their homework, improves them and they, it's like calling other kids,
making it bigger, it's like a family. And getting kind of tight inside there and the other
building would help and improve, call more kids in, make the family bigger, yeah. So,
just asking for your guys' help and support for us and the Boys and Girls Club. Thank
you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Come on, ladies, step up.
MS. APOLO: My name is Olivia and this is Joanne. I think we've been going to the Club for
about two, three years. I've been going there for about a year and a half and the Club has
really improved me, I think. If I wasn't going to the Club every day I don't know what I
would be doing.
I noticed that with every day, we're getting a lot of kids and we need more space for
them, because there's so many coming now. And I think a new building would be great,
because then we can have more programs and, you know, more activities which means
more kids. And honestly, yeah, it is taking kids off the streets. Because I know for a fact
some people that I've brought there, like they're so involved in the Club now and if they
weren't they'd probably be off doing drugs or something.
And the Club is like, it's such a great place to be, because you're around kids and you
know, like me and Joanne we're at an abstinence program, we're peer leaders. I mean
we're teaching them and we learn so much ourselves. And you learn patience with kids
and you just, you have a lot of fun. I mean it's a great way to spend your time, and if we
had that new building it would be awesome, that would be like the best thing. Yeah.
Thank you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. You want to say something? Go ahead, ma'am.
MS. PASCUA: Aloha. My name is Kalei Ho'opi'i Pascua. I'm just one parent that has four
children that go there. So, you can imagine what a loss it would be. They teach our
children respect, not only for themselves but for others, positive interaction, which is
something we don't find every day.
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There's a lot of things that do go wrong in society, and sometimes our children choose to
go that route. I think if we have an outreach with our children that tell their friends about
the Boys and Girls Club that, of course, it brings more kids there. It, it has had a very big
positive impact on my children. They have been more outgoing; just being able to trust
more so in other people, confide; going somewhere, instead of going home because me
and my husband have full time jobs.
Instead of laying the responsibility on my children to take care of their younger brother
and sisters, this is a place where they have that opportunity to go and be united with other
children and teach each other the right way and not the wrong way. And I think it would
be a great loss to our community.
I honestly believe that the funding is needed, and I think something that has such a large
impact on our youth today, in a positive way, is something that is needed. They have
sports; they have, you know, just games; they have, they go places; they do things; and
they learn, when they're together in a group, to learn how to socialize in and interact in, in
different areas. They travel to Lahaina; they travel Upcountry; they do talent shows.
I mean these are things that normally you wouldn't be able to find. And the price that
they have us pay as parents is so minimal and the giving that these people give to our
children on a day-to-day basis is just outstanding, and I don't think that it's something that
I would want my children to lose. Yeah? So, thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mattos, please, come forward.
MR. MATTOS: Hi, everybody. My name is Kawika Mattos. I'm the new program director
there for Central the last three months. Before I talk about the Boys and Girls Club, I
really got to put in a plug for MEO, the Youth Transportation, because without them,
who shuttles in 95 percent of our kids to Central every day, every school day. That's
crucial to us for the membership, because these kids wouldn't be able to come if it was
just, you know, there in the neighborhood. So, please support MEO transportation. I see
their value.
I've recently gone to run the Central Club. Prior to that, I've gone, I've done a lot of, a
number of businesses, but in the last eight years, I've been connected with Maui Youth
and Family Services running at-risk, group home programs. I did that for four years and
then actually became a foster parent taking in up to four boys, at-risk boys straight out of
Koolau. I've, I've helped couple hundred kids in this, in this eight-year process. And
what's exciting for me to be a part of the Boys and Girls Club is the fact that now I can be
proactive versus reactive.
I, I have, I recently became a foster parent again and I still believe everyone needs a
chance, and I've taken in 17 -year olds. But the point that I'm trying to make about Boys
and Girls Club is to have little Isaiah there and help create that destiny for him in a
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positive light and many of the kids. I'm reaching out to different communities where they
would be going home and possibly getting into trouble in the later years.
Taking some of the path that some of the kids that I've worked with the at-risk kids
sometimes it's just environment. And being there at the Boys and Girls Club and
watching and seeing them grow in the last three months is just is incredible to me that we
can actually together collectively be there to support every kid that walks through that
door, support them, be the parent, aside from their own parent, and help them to have a
positive life.
I've got some great visions. I mean, we went from on the average of 60 kids three
months ago, to ... they're sincere when they say, we got, we getting like 90 to 100 kids
now in the last three months. Kids are coming back; the staff is incredible; we're talking
about doing new things like putting up a sand volleyball court and horseshoe pits outside.
Because we want kids to come in, not only new kids but the kids are returning to actually
stay there and feel encouraged. And we're running, we are literally running out of space.
When you walk in there on, on any given day after school and just see floods of kids, you
know, kids just flooding the place and excited.
We're pushing, with all my behavioral management and S.A., substance abuse training
that I've had over the last six years and applying that to the Club and what we represent
and, and teaching 100 percent respect. They feel safe, they feel very, very safe coming to
the Club.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MATTOS: Thank you. So, so with that said, I mean, it's, it, we're encouraged and we
appreciate your support. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mattos, and thank you, ladies and gentlemen. Members,
questions? Hearing none, thank you very much. Thank you for your testimony.
Last call for the youngsters. Seeing none, we're going to go ahead and start from the
beginning: Nelson Okumura. Excuse me, I'm sorry, Mr. Okumura, forgive me. That,
that's why I'm, I have Youth Bank, but I have you and that's why I'm asking if you have
all the kids with you. Okay. Why don't you go ahead and bring them in. We'll get them
in and out, sir. Thank you, Mr. Crowe. Yeah. Otherwise, they'll just keep on standing
outside-MR. CROWE: Okay. You're right.
CHAIR KANE: --so we need to get them in here. We got a lot of people here.
MR. CROWE: Okay. Hold your ears, I gotta whistle for my kids. That's the way it works. My
name is Jim Crowe, and I'm the program director of Youth Bank. And I'm, I'm merely
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here to introduce four of our youngsters, and I very much appreciate your guys' patience
and being available here to hear them, because they've been kind of looking forward to
this. So, come say your name and start right away. Put it close to your mouth.
MS. FORDE: Good evening. Hi. My name is Kayla Forde and I am a participant of the MEO
Youth Bank. I joined the MEO Youth Bank because I thought it would be a good way to
get to know people and keep me out of trouble. And guess what? It did.
It also gave me a chance to learn about my background and history. Well, I just want you
guys to know the MEO Youth Bank has done so much for me and with your help it can
do a lot more for others. Thank you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. KAPOI: Hi. My name is Arianna Kapoi and I am a member of the MEO Youth Bank. I
have been a member of the MEO Youth Bank for about two years. This program has
changed me in a lot of different ways. First of all, it changed my spiritual ways because
before I never did care about the sacred places on our island. But the reason why I never
cared was because I never knew where they were, and I never knew if they had any on
this island. And now that we go to places like that when we go camping, I learned a lot
and I care more.
It also help me with my physical needs, like my body they help me that way because as a
Baldwin volleyball player, I have to get in shape and stay that way. So, the way they're
helping me is that they take everybody to the Wailuku Gym to go and lift weights.

At this program they have prepared me to get a job. They help me, they help me because
they told me there are certain things not to, not to do and what to do in a job interview.
They also told me what type of clothes are appropriate for a job interview.
The program even educated me more about our oceans and what is happening to them,
take, by taking me to this project called the Sea Link project. So, I think I have proved
my point that the MEO Youth Bank is a big help to me. So, I am asking you guys to
keep funding the MEO Youth Bank. Thank you for your time. Arianna Kapoi.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kapoi.
MR. LEE: Good evening. My name is Ian Wayne Lee, and I'm with the MEO Youth Bank
program. Tonight, I'm going to talk about the life and job skills that we learn in Youth
Bank. The job skills that we learn are skills that will help us to get a job such as looking
for a job, what the job requires and the expectations that is expected of us to keep the job.
And the life skills I'm going to talk about is ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... we're basically
surrounded by the oceans so some guys would go fishing and then other guys don't know
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how so we would teach the other guys how to fish, to throw net, dive and everyone would
learn how for clean fish.
And then what separates the MEO Youth Bank from other programs out there is our
program we learn skills that will help us for life and to better prepare us, so we are
prepared when we go out there. And please help to support the MEO Youth Bank
program in the future years. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Lee.
MR. NAMOKU: Hi. My name is Andre Namoku. I am representing for MEO Youth Bank.
MEO Youth Bank supported me and the following members and the outside people for,
for a long time, several years. They taught us a lot of job skills and hands-on skills,
training.
They teach us, preparing us job application, mock, mock interview and sort of et cetera,
like life-skills training they help us on lifeguard, prepare us for lifeguard, CPR, first aid
and learning more about my culture, Hawaiian culture in Hawaii islands. Please support
us in the future years for MEO Youth Bank. Thank you for listening to me.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Namoku. Members, any questions for the speakers or
Mr. Crowe? Mr. Crowe, any additional comments?
MR. CROWE: No. They're great aren't they? And it's because of your guys' support, too.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Crowe. Hi. You have your kids with
you?
MS. MAEDA: Youth Bank.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead, folks.
MS. MAEDA: I'm Amy Maeda. I'm here to give support for Youth Bank, MEO Youth Bank.
I'm the program coordinator of Ka Lima 0 Maui, and I'm a social worker, a grant writer
and a skills trainer.
I appreciate MEO Youth Bank because as I'm working with the homeless and
previously-incarcerated people out in the street giving them job skills, MEO is doing for
my child what I'm doing for another grown up. And I appreciate the fact that there are
funds to plant seed in my child, and I am in support of releasing the, 150,000 for this
year's budget for MEO Youth Bank to get these skill, kids skilled in job retention and
improving their life skills through employment. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Maeda.

-13

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005 (Kahului)

MS. MAU: My name is Mary Anne Doane-Mau.
CHAIR KANE: You can bend the whole thing, Ms. Doane-Mau.
MS. MAU: Thanks for being here.
CHAIR KANE: The whole, the whole bar. There you go. There you go.
MS. MAU: Is that okay?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. MAU: Okay. In short, I'm here to ask you to support MEO, especially in the area of
transportation. I wasn't expecting to, to agree with Kawika that he's asking for more
money, but you will be hearing from my daughter probably next week. She, my son
William Makela spoke last week to the Council and he's all for MEO.
Both my children, 16-year-old son and 14-year-old daughter have gone through some
tremendous changes in the last couple years: one is that they both go to Kamehameha and
in itself that's pretty traumatic in getting used to that. And then there's been a lot of
problems at home, and so they've been getting used to that.
So, out of 90 percent of their time spent at home or school they have a small percentage
of time to spend somewhere else, and MEO has been that place for them. And I have to
thank them so much for pointing my kids in the right direction, for supporting them and
teaching them how to be leaders.
My daughter and son both love the hands-on experiences and going on trips. My
daughter is saying that she feels sorry for Uncle Duke, because he has to do all the
driving to take everybody home. And she's hoping that, because they want to invite their
peers to join MEO, that there could be even a little more funding to have somebody be
able to do more driving, so that they can invite more kids. So, I'd appreciate it very much
if you would consider even a few more dollars in that direction. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Doane-Mau.
MS. MAU: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. AKIYAMA: Aloha, hi and good evening. My name is Natalie Akiyama. I have supported
MEO Youth Bank and MEO Head Start. As a single parent in the past two years, MEO
Youth Bank has helped my 15-year-old daughter to learn positive job skills, life skills
and also her self-esteem.
MEO Head Start also helped my two-year-old son
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educationally. MEO Youth Bank, MEO Head Start has helped both of my children in a
positive way. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Akiyama. Mr. Okumura, I really appreciate your patience.
There's one more group of high school kids, if we can. And we want to give a round of
applause to Mr., Mr. Okumura 'cause he signed up first, so.
So, if we can get the next group of kids up, again. Thank you, really appreciate it and
again thanks for everybody's patience for bringing up, letting us get the kids up in, in and
out. Go ahead and introduce yourself, ma'am, and then if you could introduce your, your
youngsters.
MS. YAP: Sure. Thank you so much. My name is Isla Yap. I work with the Maui Economic
Development Board's Women in Technology project. And tonight, we have some
speakers here asking for support for our Project EAST. So, I appreciate Mr. Okumura's
patience tonight, and this is all supporting Project EAST.
CHAIR KANE: Okay and before you folks speak, have you folks signed up a sheet? You all
did? Okay. We just want to make sure, so say your name so I can find you and pull you
out of the list as we go along. Go ahead. Come forward.
MS. HOLLIDAY: Aloha and good evening, Council Members. My name is Kellie Holliday and
I am a senior at Lahainaluna High School. I'm a third-year EAST member. Recently, as
a lot of us will mention, sorry, we all traveled to Arkansas, well not all of us, but most of
us traveled to Arkansas for the EAST conference, central EAST conference, and that was
due because of funds that we were given by you guys. So, on behalf of Maui Youth
Program and my facilitator, who couldn't be here, we wanted to thank you.
And also, I just wanted to talk a little bit about being in Arkansas, it was really nice to get
to see what students over there are doing as far as their EAST projects. We gained a lot
of ideas as far as community service, and we sort of, over there, it helped us to develop a
larger vision for our particular EAST program and kind of being there gave us the tools
and knowledge to see that grow even more and really get involved more with the
community than we have been. I mean, we have but even more so, because some of the
projects they're doing over there are incredible, and it's just really nice to be able to see
that and like know the possibility.
Also, like being in the program for three years, I think I've seen the impact of what you
guys have given us in the program just through, you know, having more hardware and
better software. And is there anything else? No. I just really wanted to thank you guys
and to consider to continue supporting our program. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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MR. WOLFE: Aloha, County Council. My name is Justin Wolfe. I'm also a student at
Lahainaluna High School. I'm am a two-year EAST student and vice-chair of the Hawaii
State Student Council.
I am here to thank you considerably for funding our trip to Arkansas. Without that I
probably would not have been able to go and meet hundreds of other students in
Arkansas and really get the opportunity to get a feeling of what EAST is across the nation
of the United States.
EAST is a wonderful program, it is helped me become more involved in my community,
create projects and get involved with other students in my school and just work with
technology and be able to move forward into the future. Being in Arkansas was so
unique, I've never been to the mainland before, so to leave Maui and to go to a place like
Arkansas was completely mind changing. I really was able to grasp from there what it's
like to work with other students from other schools, other parts of the world that I've been
inspired to actually start doing projects with students at Baldwin High School.
So, we'll be working together now to start working on community service projects, they'll
hopefully take the West Side and this side together, or Central Side, yeah together, and
start working together. So, thank you very much for all your support, and I hope you
continue to support EAST. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on one second, Justin. Why don't you go ahead and explain to everybody
what EAST stands for.
MR. WOLFE: Yeah. EAST is Environmental and Spatial Technologies.
CHAIR KANE: Very good. So-MR. WOLFE: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --ladies and gentlemen, it's a great program.
MR. WOLFE: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Sends this guys and they compete and they have their own wall in Arkansas
with all of the Maui winners. So, give us some ...
MR. WOLFE: One correction, no, we don't compete anymore in the conferences. It's more of a
review to see how we do and how we can improve our conferences better. There are
competitions but that's not our main goal anymore.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Come forward.
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MS. MAKAHANALOA: Aloha. My name is Lurline Makahanaloa and I am the representative
from Lahainaluna High School. I am a Junior and I am a first-year EAST student. I
would like to thank you, guys, for the chance to get to travel to Arkansas and represent
our school and present our EAST program.
We've learned a lot from our trip, we've became more responsible students, having to
meet deadlines that were pushed upon us with this oncoming trip. And also, when we
went to Arkansas, we came back and we brought back different types of software and just
a bunch of new ideas and concepts, like my former representative partners mentioned
about learning and having new ideals for our community.
So, I would like to thank you for funding us and I would, and I hope that you guys
continue to fund us some more. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. DIAS: Good afternoon. My name is Jody Dias. I am speaking on behalf of the EAST
program. I want to say first that EAST, the EAST program has provided me with so
many opportunities. One of the opportunities that I received was to present, represent my
school, King Kekaulike High School, at the 2005 EAST conference in Little Rock,
Arkansas on March 14th through the 16th .
The objective was to demonstrate how the entire lab demonstrated community
interaction, collaboration, teamwork, use of technology and student growth. EAST
provides students with the benefit of learning the value of technology in today's growing
economy. I want to thank you for your support and your donations. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. KING: Hi. My name is Aaron King and I am in Maui High EAST. EAST, as a whole, has
really helped me as a student to grow in, basically, leadership positions, because it's
really not like any other class, where it actually represents more of the real world than
school traditionally does.
Like you form a team on your own and you have to tackle a problem on your own and
you have to find solutions on your own with nobody like holding your hand. Basically, a
facilitator is there to just provide like, oh, here's the computers, oh, here's the technology
for you to use to get to the solution. But basically you have to go through, you have to
learn the software, you have to find out, you know, contact the community people.
And it really sort of gives you an idea of how like the real world works, which is
basically you are hired for a job and they don't go and give you like a whole year of
training. So that, oh, here, here's you know what you do if this happens, you know. It,
you really are supposed to know what you're doing for your job, right, so it kind of gives
you that sort of taste of like how the real world in business operates.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. King.
MS. BALALA: Hi. My name is Tiffany Balala, and I'm a Senior at Baldwin High School. And
this is, I'm a second-year EAST student. And EAST has given me the opportunity to go
to both the Sacramento conference last year and the Arkansas conference this year.
And EAST has taught me leadership and teamwork skills, and they also taught me to use
different softwares that I've never used before. And with EAST when we went to
Arkansas, we learned what it was like to collaborate with the other EAST programs that
we didn't work with before, and we learned what the other EAST programs in Arkansas
were doing, which gave us feedback on what we, we could do to help out our community
here.
And if it wasn't for EAST our school wouldn't have a proposed new library, so we're
helping them create our new library. And we've helped the Maui Police Department
create an evacuation map for our school. So, with the EAST program it's not like any
other class, like Aaron said, and it allows students to not only gain teamwork skills and
values but also how to work independently and how to solve problems on their own.
So, on behalf of the Baldwin High School EAST program, I'd like to ask you guys to
continue your funding.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Balala.
MR. DAVIS: Aloha kakou. My name is Jacob Davis. I'm a Sophomore at Maui High School.
This is my first year in EAST and first of all, I'd just like to say thank you for giving me
the chance to go to Arkansas, 'cause other than that I only go to Oahu or Big Island, so
that's the most I get to go.
So, it was a really good experience, you guys heard about it. Another thing is that,
without, EAST has given me a chance to expand my learning skills with the computers,
because that's the field that I'm looking into as a career for when I grow up. And without
EAST I wouldn't be able to, I know I won't have enough funding to buy my own
computer or the programs that we have and get the chances of the, get the chance to do
projects that I have done. Like I created like commercials and videos and all that, and it's
really interesting and fun.
And I like helping out the community, so that's something that EAST allows you to do,
'cause practically all of your projects that you do is for the community. So, a project that
I'm working on right now is Maui Food Bank, I'm trying to make a public service
announcement for them. And then I'm going to be making a commercial, hopefully, for
the Maui Police Department for their Police Appreciation Week coming up pretty soon,
so that should be interesting. And it's always fun to help, help others and even expand on
my learning myself. I'd just like to say that. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Davis.
MR. BRAUER: My name is Alex Brauer, and I am with Baldwin High School EAST lab. I
want to thank you very much for supporting us and to going to Arkansas. It was very fun
and I learned a lot in computers and socializing with other schools about our EAST lab
and what we have done for the community.
We have learned all types of video and software, and I think it is very encouraging for
students when they are in the lab, because they learn all sorts of stuff that will prepare
them for the future and their future careers. We try to help out the community, we have
every student do their own project and to kind of help the community out. And from
there we see which best projects are, and we work with that project to try to finalize it.
So, we have the whole class working on couple main projects. So, thank you very much
for supporting us.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Brauer.
MR. SOUZA: My name is Kyle Souza, and I'm from Baldwin High School. I'm a Junior. I'm a
second-year EAST student. EAST has provided me with the skills and the programs to
excel. It helped me become more self-directed learner. I also learn how to collaborate
with other people. It has also provided me with a chance to help others.
The EAST lab is pretty much run by students for the students. As others said, the
facilitator is only there just to push us along, but we pretty much do all the work. We do
our, solve all our problems. And for the Arkansas trip, I thank you guys a lot for that,
that was really fun, and I hope to be able to do that again. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Souza.
MR. MUSSHORN: Hi. My name is Jamie Musshorn, and I am a Junior
School. I'm a third-year EAST student and just wanted to thank
Economic Board and the Women in Technology for giving us the
program. It's actually been a great help for a lot of the students in the
the teachers.

at Baldwin High
the entire Maui
funding for this
school as well as

We've, as some have said before, we helped propose a new library, we've helped, you
know with multiple improvement projects around the campus and around the State,
island, et cetera. And without this program, some of the students wouldn't have the
technology available to them that would really help them in preparations for college or
new careers or any of that other type of preparatory study. But just thank you very much
to everyone who made it possible, and it's a great program and I hope you continue to
fund us. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Jamie.
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MS. BRAUER: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen, Council Members. I'm a mother of a
student that had the pleasure and the honor and the privilege of attending the EAST
conference in Arkansas. I've watched my guy, Alex Brauer, grow tremendously in the
EAST program. Some of us have children that are very into computers, and it's
wonderful when they learn socialization skills and team skills, when they're not always
the one by themselves making it happen.
Please fund them, they deserve it.
Academically their growth is going to be able to enable our community to do great
things. Please fund them, god bless you, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ma'am, if you can state your name, please.
MS. BRAUER: I'm sorry. I'm Nancy Brauer.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Brauer. Alright. Thank you very much. Mr. Okumura. How
about a hand for Mr. Okumura? And following Mr. Okumura is Carol Sutton.
MR. OKUMURA: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, Council Members and citizens of Maui. My
name is Nelson Okumura. I'm on the Board of the Maui Food Bank. I'm also the
President of VIP Food Service and a resident of Kahului.
The Maui Food Bank would like to request that we be included once again as a line item
appropriation to the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 Budget in the amount of $150,000, which at
the same, that we, amount that we requested last year and in the years past. At our
company, we had a food drive last year, and during the food drive one of our long-time
employees came up to us and said, you know, gee, thanks for doing the food drive. You
know there was a point in my life when my spouse became incarcerated, and I ended up
being the sole breadwinner of the family, and if it wasn't for the food bank, you know, I
wouldn't have made it. So, that, you know, really brought home to me the value of the
Food Bank to our community.
The Food Bank has a two-fold mission: first, to collect food from our community, and
they do this by forming alliances with commercial organizations such as grocery stores
and wholesalers to collect the food that is not salable but still consumable. The food
drive also works with nonprofit organizations, companies, associations to do food drives
to collect foods from the community at large.
And the second part of the mission is for the Food Bank to get this food to the people
who need it. The Maui Food Bank distributes this food to 70 nonprofit agencies in Maui
County. These are agencies such as the homeless shelter, Hale Kau Kau, the Women's
Shelter. These organizations in turn provide the food to people in need.
Almost half the recipients are children, many are elderly with medical expenses leaving
them, you know, without enough money to afford food. The Food Bank provides an
efficient way to get this donated food to these people in need. Rather than each agency
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spending resources to source the food, solicit donations, process and store the food, the
food, the Food Bank consolidates these functions into one and acts almost like a
wholesaler to get this food to the people.
Last year, the Maui Food Bank expanded their program by adding produce to their
program, and this coming year, the Food Bank plans to start an additional program where
they recover prepared food from restaurants and hotels that would normally go to waste
because of overproduction. But they want to recover that food and distribute it to the
agencies.
The Food Bank receives broad support from the community in the form of food donations
and monetary donations; however, the, the line item is an important part of the budget,
which is used to pay for overhead, salaries, rent, et cetera. If it wasn't for this line item
the Food Bank wouldn't be able to operate at its current level of service. So, the Maui
Food Bank, we believe that no one should go hungry in Maui County, no one should be
faced with choosing between paying the rent or buying food. So, we really appreciate
your folks support in the past, and we hope you will continue your support of the Maui
Food Bank with the line item appropriation, which we are requesting in this upcoming
budget. Thank you very much for your consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Okumura. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony. And to everybody else, again, thanks for your patience in letting us
get the kids through early. We have Carol Sutton and Ms. -- oh, Ms. Sutton, we have just
a little keiki sitting right there. Can we take care of them?
MS. SUTTON: Sure. That's okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Sutton. Really appreciate it.
MS. EVANGELISTA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Cheyene Evangelista. I
am speaking on behalf of MEO Kahi Kamali'i Infant and Toddler Center. I would like to
thank you for your support, for supporting the infant toddler center and MEa and asking
that you continue to provide funds to keep the center running. My son, Shawnson has
been attending Kahi Kamali'i for about four months now, and, you know, he comes home
saying his ABCs, you know, doing things that I would not be able to teach him by
myself. And the help of the staff at Kahi Kamali'i has helped a lot.
We received funding last month and it was a great deal to me, because, you know, I am a
single mom and to find a good school, you know, for the price, you know, as far as
money-wise, it's hard. So, I appreciate your help and again I thank you for everything
and hope that you continue the funding for us.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions?
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MS. FRENDO: Hello. My name is Michele Frendo. I am a single mother of two, Sabrina and
Russell. I brought both of, both of my childrens [sic] were born with medical condition
that slows the development. Sabrina was born with club feet, and Russell was born with
a condition of effect throughout his head, his head was deformed. Sabrina and Russell
require special service to help them with their development. Today, my children are
striving and doing well. Russell and Sabrina have received help from Kahi Kamali'i Day
Care, Imua Family Service, Palama Na Keiki and the MEO Head Start. Without the help
of these programs that agencies, my children would not have been able to develop as well
or as quickly as they have.
I've felt support, I have felt support by the staff and each of these agencies and felt that I,
I and my children were treated with care and concern for our needs. I feel very lucky to
have been eligible for these programs. My children were able to get the service that they
needed to prepare them for their future educations.
I was able to attend school because of these programs, so I could try to better myself and
make a better future for my family. In a closing, I would like to ask that you continue to
support these programs and providers as many resource as you can, so these programs
can expand and continue to help other families and childrens, like we have been helped.
Thank you for your considerations and also this is some of the childrens from MCC and
they are so happy. Like I say, if it wasn't for you guys' support they wouldn't be ahead,
especially my dau ... , my son and my daughter they been, they carne through a lot. And
Russell he loves the day care so much, he looks forward to go there. He doesn't want to
leave when I pick him up, it's like he wants to stay there. It's like, no, I don't want to go
horne, morn, I want to stay here. But again, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. IRWIN: With your permission, there's a couple of parents that couldn't be here. If I may
read one of the letters of one of the parents.
CHAIR KANE: You can read one of them, ma'am, yeah.
MS. IRWIN: Okay. Let's see, which one should we read then? ... (inaudible) ... sorry.
CHAIR KANE: And you can submit the rest-MS. IRWIN: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and we'll have that-MS. IRWIN: Okay. Alright.
CHAIR KANE: --on the record, ma'am.
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MS. IRWIN: This is a parent named Michele, to whom it may concern. My name is
Monika Irwin. I'm an infant, toddler specialist at Kahi Kamali'I and I'm reading this for
Michele.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. IRWIN: To whom this may concern: I would like to thank you for the funds that you have
provided me with towards paying my sons monthly tuition for Kahi Kamali'i. I would
not be able to afford it on my own, I'm very grateful for the assistance you give to my son
and I. I'm currently enrolled at Maui Community College in the Web Design
Certification program and an internship with Mana Web Solutions. These two programs
require me to put in a lot of hours.
Your help allows my son to be in a safe positive and an educational environment while
I'm at school or my internship, gives me peace of mind to know that he's being cared for
by the loving and knowledgeable teachers at Kahi Kamali'i. They help teach the children
to be kind to one another, share, say please and thank you, learn songs, read books, feed
themselves, wash their hands, brush their teeth, clean up their messes, and when they are
ready, potty training. I humbly ask that you please continue to support my scholarship,
so that I can afford to keep my son in this wonderful environment. Thank you for your
time and consideration, sincerely Michele Goth.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Irwin.
MS. IRWIN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you,
ladies. Ms. Sutton, you are so patient. Following Ms. Sutton, we have Mrs. Ornellas, if
Mrs. Ornellas is here for Paukukalo Boys and Girls Club. And you can just bend that
down, Mrs. Sutton. She get 'em. There you go. Thank you.
th

MS. SUTTON: My name is Carol Sutton. In December the 13 in '89, I had a job at Marriott
Hotel in Newport Beach, and I worked eleven to seven in the morning. When I got home
that morning and my, my friend said, how are you doing? And I said, not good. And I
didn't know for six months I had two aneurysms on my brain and a stroke on this side.
And I'm not scared, I just can't talk ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... and I was in a coma for two
months and when I finally wake up, I was a baby and it took about two years for me to
talk.
And so now I need the bus, you know, 'cause I can't, I got a cane and I can't carry my
package or nothing. And I love the bus, so when that happened of course I can't drive
now. I lost my car, you know, so you never know. I was only 53 at the time, you know,
and I wasn't sick or nothing. So, you never know what's gonna tomorrow, so I'm still
here and I need the bus really bad. So, thank you for your time. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sutton. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you. Is
Mrs. Ornellas still here? Mrs. Ornellas? Okay. Nathan Cutler. Mr. Cutler is going to be
followed, following Mr. Cutler is Susana Brownie [sic], I believe, Browrie [sic], I'm
sorry.
MS. BROWNE: Browne.
CHAIR KANE: Browne. Fancy N. Good evening, Mr. Cutler.
MR. CUTLER: Good evening. My name is Nathan Cutler. I'm a senior and I live at Hale
Mahaolu Elima. The bus system that is in use at the facility for the members and the
residents of the facility is the most extraordinary system I've ever seen. The drivers and
the personnel involved have always been very, very helpful. And most of the seniors at
the facility, residential facility are disabled. And I live there, too, I'm disabled also, you
know, I won't tell you where, but I'm just.
I still drive, so I don't need the bus personally, but I've used the bus upon occasion
whether we went for a luncheon or a dinner. And it is a support system that's involved in
the buses that are supplied by the bus system that's through MEO is the most superb thing
that I have ever witnessed. And I've been there over two years.
So, I implore you to continue the support of that particular bus system for the seniors and
the disabled. And up to now you've done an excellent job, and I hope you continue and
expand it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cutler. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you,
sir, for your testimony. Susana Browne followed by, and following Ms. Browne is
Vincent Mina.
MS. BROWNE: Good evening, Council County Members. Thank you very much for allowing
all of us to be here. My name is Susana Browne. I'm the education director at Maui Arts
and Cultural Center. And I'm here to thank you for your continued support of our
outstanding arts education program and hopefully you will continue to support it.
This year, we're celebrating our 10th anniversary in the John F. Kennedy Center for the
Performing Arts program, Partners in Education. We're in partnership with the DOE and
Kamehameha Schools-Maui in this program. We're one of 104 teams in the country and
I am proud to say, one of the strongest in the whole country.
Over the past year, hundreds of Maui teachers have participated in our workshops and
summer institutes that help them use the arts in their curriculum. For the past three years,
we've had a research project at Kula School on how an arts-integrated reading program
affects the ability to read and also attitudes about reading. And not only have we found
that it really does make a difference, but the teachers in this project have also found that
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this way of really looking closely at their students' work has helped them become better
teachers.
Our Can Do Days are unique in the whole country. Every year over 6,000 kids in
Grades 1 to 5 come to the center for a whole day of hands-on arts experiences in visual
arts, drama and dance, taught by professional teaching artists. Another 600 kids in Hana,
Molokai and Lanai get to have Can Do Days when we go there. Without the County's
support, these kids would not be able to afford these program, that program and the
teachers, their program.
This year, four high schools and three intermediate schools are having their spring band
concert in the Castle Theater. This year Baldwin and Lahainaluna are coming for the first
time. Without County support the schools would not be able to afford this really
outstanding experience.
The same is true of our student art exhibit, Celebrating the Artist in Us and our
Connecting Artists to the Community program, where over 20 visiting artists take their
expertise directly into the schools and to social service organizations like Boys and Girls
Club and Maui Youth and Family Services.
All of Maui County appreciates your support. I'm just going to end with a couple of
quotes, this one from a Kahului School teacher, second grade: with the push of standards
and No Child Left Behind, the Maui Arts and Cultural Center's Can Do Day is a fantastic
way to tie in the fine art standards in a fun, meaningful way. This is something that most
of these students would never have an opportunity to experience outside of their school
day.
From a teacher at Lihikai School: thank you for the wonderful experience of Can Do
Day and helping us to make sure that no child is left behind. And from a band student
from Lahainaluna High School: thank you very much for letting us perform in Castle
Theater. It was a great experience to sing in such a professional place, it made us so
proud to stand on that huge stage and hear ourselves sing through the monitors. It was a
privilege and we had a blast, we really hope we can do it again. Tiana Nicole Hanaman.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Browne. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Vincent Mina followed by Lisa Schattenburg Raymond.
MR. MINA: Aloha, Council Members. I'd liked to start off my testimony with sharing with you
some food from my farm.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Vincent.
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MR. MINA: My pleasure. Aloha, Budget Chair and Committee Members. I want to take this
time to thank you for continuing to support the efforts of our organization, Maui Aloha
Aina Association through the Maui Farm Bureau and moving our mission forward.
We are a 501-C-3 nonprofit organization whose mission is to support life-giving practices
for the body and soil through educational outreach. Sharing with you some history of our
efforts to date, we have organized and held educational conferences, workshops and farm
tours, all built around the concept of honoring the body and the soil's ability to sustain
vitality by implementing life-giving practices such as growing nutrient-dense foods, that's
what you have in front of you, in a vital, living soil.
For there is two things we know of that don't lie and that's the body and the soil. In this
day and age of large chemical and pharmaceutical companies and rampant dis-ease the
playing field for research and development, sadly, has been tilted away from natural and
biological practices. As an organic, organic farmer myself, I personally experience value
in the events Maui Aloha Aina puts on.
And we at MAA feel fortunate that the County recognizes the importance to continue
supporting these efforts. Since the results literally feed the community's farms' ability to
sustain production of organic food and those wanting to transition to organic practices.
The support from the County grant through the Farm Bureau, lead by the farmer
supportive efforts of President Warren Watanabe and his Board, also enables us to keep
prices down for our events with the passing on the value to the attendees. Since 2001, it
has numbered over 500 people attending our events.
We've also been successful in generating in-kind donations of speakers waiving their
speaker fees along with the community donating food, lodging, goods and services to
enrich the experience of the folks attending these hands-on events. Our next event is
planned for August of this year, we're having another conference.
We hold the vision for Maui County to one day be a leader in the State, to become
organic. I mean, you know, I notice in the Council's mission statement, it has in the
County's mission statement it has: protecting the environment, creating a balance to
protect the environment and sustain economic viability. Well, it doesn't have to be an
either/or, you know, really I would like to see that mission statement reworded in a way
that speaks to, just think if Maui was an organic community. I mean it would be the first
one in the world, and so the vision that we have is to turn to tropical, purchase the
tropical plantation, somehow, and turn it into an organic soil health institute, bring, bring
that energetics back to that aina there.
And also envision changing the isthmus, all the cane fields into a organic, biological golf
course. That would be a great way to send people home after their game with a box of
organic food. Finally, we envision all the taro fields being in organic production again,
stewarding the culture back into agriculture. So, thank you very much again for your
support and your help, and I appreciate it very much.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you Mr. Mina. Thank you for ...
MR. MINA: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate it. Any questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you very much.
Lisa Schattenburg Raymond and following Ms. Raymond is Debra Johnson.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council Members. I'm Lisa Schattenburg
Raymond. I'm the Executive Director of the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens and I'll be
speaking with you folks on Thursday, with the Economic Development Office, and, but
just wanted to come and, and say hello tonight and thank you for your support. This is
going to be kind of a rocky year for us. We are facing a few little financial things right
now that I'm, I'll know more later, hopefully by Thursday. But we are going for a
long-term lease with the County and once that's in place, we're going to be in a better
place to do bigger fund raising than we're able to do right now. So, we're asking for your
support to help us get through that process.
One of the things that has affected us this year is, you know, the Hui No 'eau has had a
urgent need to raise a lot of money in a short period of time, and of course, you know, I
support them and everything. But we have one donor that has supported us for a number
of years now, and he has to decided to give all his funds to the Hui to help them in this, in
this time of need. So, that's been kind of a blow to us, it's not something that we were
expecting this year.
Also, I just found out last week that the money that was in the Water Department budget
has been spent on other things. So, I'm still waiting, you know, I'm still waiting to hear
back from them about what happened with that. But that's going to affect us in the short
term as that, we were counting on that money for the last quarter of this fiscal year. So, I
hope to have more information for you by Thursday, because I'm not sure what happened
with that and how, you know.
Anyway, so I'm still in shock right now and, but, you know we are doing a fund-raising
campaign right now. We've met with the board last week and are working on trying to
scramble funding to get for, to get through the next four or five months. But anyway, I
hope you support us in this next year. We have asked for an increase in funding and we
hope to get through this bumpy time, and the garden is just doing so many amazing
things. We are, we have grown so quickly, and I wish I had time to share with you all the
programs that, that we're working on right now. But we are actually getting a State-wide
reputation for the work that we're doing, which is, you know, kind of amazing, and that
we've done so much in such a short period of time.
So, we're looking at a really bright future, and we're just kind of, need to get through this
tough time in the next year or so and then we should be on our way. So, I thank you for
your support.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? We'll see you on Thursday. Oh, I'm sorry.
Ms. Raymond, come we have, Councilmember Johnson with a question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Lisa, the money that was in the Board of Water Supply, do
you recall was that proviso'd or earmarked in any way, specifically for your project?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: It, it was put in the Director's Budget was my
understanding and 25,000 was for operating, and the other 25,000 was to complete our
irrigation project, which we're intending to start this winter.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay but you don't know if it was earmarked or proviso'd by
the County Council specifically for your project?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: I, I thought it was but, you know, that was for us in that
budget, but again-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I seem to recall-MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: --I don't-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that was.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We'll look into that.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Lisa.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions? Hearing none, thank you very much.
Debra Johnson and then we have Georgia Norton.
MS. JOHNSON: Good evening-CHAIR KANE: Good evening.
MS. JOHNSON: --Budget Chair Kane and Council Members. Thank you, once again, for
listening to all of us and putting the time in the chair. I really appreciate what you guys
do, and I know you put in really long hours. My name is Debra Johnson. I'm the
Executive Director at the Maui Food Bank. And I would not, I don't really have a lot to
say, 'cause Nelson, who was the first speaker, supposedly, he did such a great job.
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So, I'm really not going to take up too much time except to really thank you for your
support over the last few years. It has made an incredible difference to this community
and our entire community of Maui County in the amount of food that we can get to
families. I do want to take a little bit of time and explain what we are trying to do and
why the line item is so very important. We are able to start new programs, because you
support us the way that you do. Your money is very well-invested. We started the
produce program in July, we didn't, we were able to raise other funds for that, write
grants for that. We're bringing in over 20,000 pounds of additional food every month.
That's a huge amount of food coming into the Food Bank. And you know we never have
enough food, we cannot meet the demand.
The new program that Nelson mentioned is a prepared-food recovery program where we
are going to go out and pick up meals that have not been served and get them to specific
programs. The reason that this is so important is: number one, it will change the life of
Marie at Hale Kau Kau if she doesn't have to prepare quite so much food, also, the lives
of the folks at the shelter, because again they don't have to prepare quite so much food.
But the beauty of it is it makes their lives easier, this food is going to go directly to them.
But that means that they will not be coming into the Food Bank every day and taking the
food that's in the Food Bank. That food will now be freed up for other programs that
have pantry programs. So, it's really important to us to be able to do this program.
And I really thank you for your support, where we have no idea how much food we're
actually going to be able to recover, we haven't done this before. We are going to be able
to fund it totally on our own, but again we can do these kinds of programs, because we
know that our basic core services aren't jeopardized by starting new programs. And it is
because of you and your faith in us and I really do appreciate that. And that's really all I
have to say this evening.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions?
MS. JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you very much.
John Alison.

Georgia Norton and then we have

MS. NORTON: Good evening, Council. Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today.
My name is Georgia Norton, and I happen to be the Maui Humane Society President,
Board of Directors. I just want to let you know that for the past six years that I've been a
resident on this island, I have donated my services as a volunteer and for the past two
years, president to the Maui Humane Society.
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I would like the Council to consider the fact that they're paying the Maui Humane Society
to provide services whose demands can only be increased in the future. Changes in the
quarantine laws have made it easier for people to bring in their pets from the mainland.
The Maui News has reported that there's been a sizable increase in the number of pets
entering the State.
Since I'm in the pet industry trade myself, I have had numerous clients tell me that they
would have never moved until the quarantine laws changed. As soon as the laws
changed, they jumped on the plane. Our overall population is increasing, and many of
those new residents will be pet owners. More people in more densely-populated areas
will surely increase the number of animal control instances.
Also, these people are going to request from us more services from the Maui Humane
Society. With additional monies from the County, we will be able to reopen the Maui
Humane Society shelter on Sundays and Mondays to meet the community, the services
that they require.
I have had numerous complaints from clients in my business that they have called the
Maui Humane Society on Sundays and Mondays and we've been closed. This is
unfortunate, we need to serve that community.
I would also like to bring the Council's attention that the aspects of our animal control
functions do create continuing financial responsibilities. I'm sure that many of you are
aware of the incident concerning the dog "Faust" from last year. He severely mauled a
female on his own property. Faust still resides with us, at this time he's being taken care
of, he's being fed daily, cleaned after and the, the court system has stalled. Maui Humane
Society sees no reimbursement for his care, and his owner has all but abandoned his
responsibilities and financial responsibilities to this animal.
In closing, I hope the Council understands and appreciates the valuable services that the
staff and the volunteers who run the Maui Humane Society provide, and I hope that you
continue to fund us as fully as possible. It will not be wasted. Thank you for your past
support and thank you for your continued support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Norton. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much for your testimony. John Alison. Following Mr. Alison is Dennis DeLeon(?) Jr.
MR. ALISON: Aloha and mabuhay. Here comes the kalamungay. My name is John Alison and
I live at Maui Elima. And I want thank all you Council Members for supporting us, not
us, but the MEO bus, past, present and I hope in the future. Because now they thinking
about changing to privatation bus. If that happen, all of us that use the bus, the MEO bus
three times a week, we'll be up the creek with a leaky canoe.
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Like Carol Sutton, we live in the same complex. She and I and ten more other guys
depend on the bus and about, about half of us is disabled. I'm, I'm disabled myself, I had
a stroke affecting on my right side, and I live and I walk and I don't have no strength.
And most of all, when we go shopping, we buy about three or four packages of food, you
know, and the bus driver, MEO bus driver is so helpless -- helpless, my eye -- helpful.
He help us carry the grocery out, in, out of the bus; and he drive the bus right up to our
house, you know, our apartment; help us out, carry the grocery to our doorstep; and all
the, they do, they do a really bang-up job. But if you were to fund ... (inaudible) ...the
bus driver going just, going ... (inaudible) ... and watch us fall down from the bus, you
know. And he not, he not helping us, you know. If we need help, he wouldn't help us
like the bus driver from MEO.
So I hope you guys consider, you know ... (inaudible) ... don't touch the MEO bus,
because we need it, we really need it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Alison. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much for your testimony. Dennis DeLeon, Dennis DeLeon, Jr.? Janis von Thaden
and following Ms. Thaden is Tannis Grimes.
MS. von THADEN: Good evening. My name is Janis von Thaden and I'm a member of Hui
No 'eau and I have been for almost 30 years, Hui No'eau Visual Arts Center in Makawao.
And I appreciate very much having the chance to talk with all of you tonight.
I just wanted to talk to you as a member and tell you what it's meant to me and my family
to be a member of that organization and to watch it grow over the last 30 years. My
children have taken classes there; I've taken classes there; and my grandchildren
hopefully soon will do the same. The Hui is open to everybody in the community, to
visitors, to people of all ages.
Classes are offered in a wide variety of, of media. I've taken photography and drawing,
and painting classes. My children have taken ceramics classes. I've learned Hawaiian
crafts from lauhala weaving to haku lei making. So, there is a wide aspect of the classes
that are taught there. And in addition to that, we have programs for children at youth, at
risk, youth at risk, and we have programs in the summer, camps for children.
We have an opportunity for people to really develop a career through, in art, which helps
them and helps their families, but it also helps the economy of Maui. I've had people tell
me that some visitors come to Oahu and they are going to art galleries there. And they'll
take a day trip to come to Maui to buy art on Maui, because the reputation of this island
for its art is so outstanding.
The Hui is a very special place historically, as well, as you all know. We are in a lovely
spot that has a great historic value to this community, and so it's not just what is taught
there but it's where it's taught that important to the island. And I really appreciate the
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support you've given us in the past, and I hope that you will continue to do it. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. von Thaden. Members, questions?
testimony. Tannis Grimes and then we have Ora Latham.

Thank you for your

MS. GRIMES: As you said, my name is Tannis Grimes. I am the Development Officer at Hui
No 'eau Visual Arts Center and have been there since 1996, which I think is a record for
development officers in nonprofits these days. It's a demanding job and I have noticed a
change in the funding patterns of nonprofits, especially at the Hui in the time I've been
there. Gone are the days when we can rely on funding from the State Foundation for
Culture and the Arts -- that funding has really plummeted and also from some of the
foundations, which find themselves in also kind of dire straits at times.
So, we've been caught in a bind about what we need and what we need to have and the
demand that people have for our classes and programs. We have increased our
fundraising efforts, we haven't just sat back, we take nothing for granted anymore. So,
we are making all efforts that we can on our fundraising events. They have pretty well
maxed out, you can just get so many people under a tent. And then what do you do? So,
we are exploring ideas there, we're constantly seeking new donors, and we're also trying
to expand, with what staff we have, the programs that we offer.
Just recently though, as you all know from reading the paper, that we have a new
challenge in that we've have had to raise, as I think Lisa mentioned, that we've had to
raise a lot of money in a short length of time. We're working on a capital campaign to
buy the land. What this has done though is that the money that people normally would
have given to our program and operational support is going to buy the land, which is
wonderful, but it also leaves a little vacuum there. So, we're also having that challenge to
face.
So, we continue to do what we can do, but we're asking for the County's support for this
as a line item in the budget. It's for operations and programs, it has nothing to do with the
land and some people are not very clear on that. The land money is totally separate from
what we're needing and asking you for, for program support. You've supported us in the
past, especially with our youth-at-risk program.
We have collaborative efforts with a number of organizations. In fact the Boys and Girls
Club has been one we've worked with in the past, the Maui Farm, Maui Youth and
Family Services, Hui Malama, a lot of the classes that we do count on support from the
County to help us with. And so we would like to just ask that we get your support for
this line item and help us in this respect.
And just in closing, I'd like to say there's, the National Endowment for the Arts has a
really good slogan if you listen the public radio. They always say that a great country
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deserves great art, and I'd like to just paraphrase that and say that Maui County deserves a
great art center. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Grimes. Members, any questions for Ms. Grimes? Hearing
none, thank you very much for your testimony. We have Ora Latham, and then we're
going to take, Members, a very brief break, so we can take care of our personal needs.
And then we'll be right back and start up with Mr. John Duey. Go ahead, Ms. Latham.
MS. LATHAM: That's what I said, I have a personal need. Aloha, Councilman Dane Kane,
Councilwoman Charmaine, Jo Ann Johnson and Councilmen, good evening. Thank you
for your patience. Hi, my name is Ora Latham, would like County of Maui to provide
funds for the fiscal year to MEO for the County homeless program.
MEO provided me assistance towards rental under the County homeless program. When
you're a senior and have a fixed income, it's hard to come up with rent and deposit. I
want to see the program be funded to help others. I was renting for almost 50 years and
the place was sold. I tried to get into Hale Mahaolu, but you have to wait for one year.
So, Maui needs rent control, so people can afford affordable rental when you have limited
funds. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Latham. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to take about five minutes, give or
take a minute, take care of some personal needs and we'll be right back. Time now is
7:35, we'll be back at a little after 7:40. We are in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS: 7:35 p.m.
RECONVENE: 7:44 p.m.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Members, ready? Okay. Here we go .... (gavel). .. Okay.
We'd like to reconvene this meeting for the 29th of March. We have next to testify
Mr. John Duey, and Mr. Duey will be followed by H. Jeanne Kenlon.
MR. DUEY: Good evening, Chairman Kane and other Council Members. My name is
John V. Duey property owner and taxpayer, lao Valley. I'm a member of Hui No'eau,
but I'm speaking tonight on behalf of my family and myself. I feel a little guilty not
speaking on ... (CHANGE TAPE) .. .the past Board Chairman, but I'm going to talk about
water.
As you know, Maui County depends on the lao Aquifer for over half of the Central and
South Maui water, and the aquifer is overused and new, and new surface water is being
used, taken and now taken, taken and more and more is being taken. The State Water
Code 174-C states that the streams and wildlife are entitled to some water, also.
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A proposal was being put forth to do a model of Na Wai 'Eha, which is lao, Waikapu,
Waiehu and Waihee Streams. The model would be done by the USGS, the estimated cost
is around $600,000 -- it hasn't been finalized yet -- over a three-year period. The USGS
is putting up one half of the cost. Of course that leaves $300,000 or around $100,000 a
year.
The Mayor has said that he supports the model would be, would like to support it with
dollars. Some other parties also had been asked, but no dollars have come forth as yet.
I'm asking that the Council put some dollars in the budget for this project. The proposal
of doing the model came forward after the budget was put forth, so it wasn't in, nothing
was in the budget for that.
One thing I'd like to add on here, I just wrote down after I made my little notes here: I
think that the Council, the County should be thinking about storage of water. lao has
been running big time the last about six days now, there needs to be water in the stream,
but there's a lot of water going into the ocean right now. And I'm talking about not little
storage, I'm talking about tens of millions of thousands of gallons of water storage.
Taken from the aquifer is kaput, that's gone already. Surface water is not a, not a, that's
going to stop one of these days, 'cause the 174-C demands it.
The petition, which was filed last June, the CWRM had six months to reply, they haven't.
That was December, they didn't do anything, but they have an additional six months
automatic, so June 25 th , something should happen according to the 174-C. So, what,
what we're asking for now is for you to consider some money for this model, it would
take three years, something like the model is doing East Maui right now that was, I think,
a three- or five-year project. It's just about being finished up.
So, we're asking for your support for this venture. It would, it would establish, it would
tell us how much water needs to be in the stream for the stream life and how much water
is going to be available for other uses. So, I would ask you for your support for this
venture.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Duey-MR. DUEY: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: --for your comments. Thank you very much. Members, any questions?
Hearing none, thank you for your testimony this evening, Mr. Duey. H. Jeanne Kenlon
followed by Dustin Adams.
MS. KENLON: Good evening, Members of the County Council. It's a pleasure to see all of
you, and thank you so much for giving us time to come here. I was talking to someone
outside, and I said I'm a haole, I came over here 20 years ago, that makes me a kamaaina
now. But I want you to know that this type of thing doesn't happen any place except in
Maui. And it is a real joy to be able to participate in the type of meetings that you have,
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for we can come up and we can talk to you one-on-one and say, this is how we feel about
a given project.
I live at Hale Mahaolu Ekahi, that once again is a very wonderful thing. And when my
husband died my kids said, are you going to come back to California? And I said, no
way. Okay, stay right here, and it has been a joy.
I served at one time on the Cost of Government Commission and I know how you must
feel. Everybody that's come up here has presented such wonderful things and how can
you say, no, to any of us?
So, I'm here because MEO does wonderful things for the seniors, they do great things for
the youth in our community. They are doing things now with this B.E.S.T program,
where they're trying to rehabilitate people that have been in the County jail. There are so
many things that they do, and so I would simply say, please, as much as you can,
continue to support MEO. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kenlon. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you very much. Next we have Deidre Tegarden. Excuse me if I'm
mispronouncing your name. Deidre -- thank you -- Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Tegarden. I thought Kelley was always difficult to spell, my maiden name
with an E, Y, but then I got Tegarden and I don't know how, that's not much better.
CHAIR KANE: Tegarden. Okay. I'll remember that and forgive me, Deidre.
MS. TEGARDEN: That's quite alright.
CHAIR KANE: And following, following Deidre, we have Nathan Kimura.
MS. TEGARDEN: So good evening, Council, my name is Deidre Tegarden. I'm the Executive
Director of Big Brothers, Big Sisters of Maui. And I didn't bring any children with me
tonight, and I know hindsight next time I will definitely bring them. But I did bring a
story, a true story.
When I took over the position eight months ago at Big Brothers, Big Sisters, there was a
little girl who would come to our office every day after school, just sit in the offices, do
her homework and hang out. She was six years old. One day I realized she was staying
there a little bit longer than usual, and I asked her, shouldn't you be going home soon?
And she said, I can't, and I said, well why not? And she said, my mom's not home. I
said, oh, well, where's your, where's your mom? She said, oh, she's visiting daddy. And
I said, oh, well, where's daddy? And she said, in prison. And I was just, I was shocked,
she's six years old.
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And studies show that children who have an incarcerated parent are 65 percent more
likely to become incarcerated themselves. And that's why our one-on-one mentoring
programs are so important. With, without those programs we have children who'd be on
the streets, children doing drugs.
That little girl is now a member of our after-school program at the center, she is also a
member of our traditional community-based volunteer Big Brothers, Big Sisters. I am
her big sister. And I just want to let you know that your support in the past is so
appreciated. I appreciate your continued support, and I just want to reaffirm that your
support is making a difference one child at a time. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Nathan Kimura. And following Mr. Kimura is Clark Nakamoto.
MR. KIMURA: Hello. My name is Nathan Kimura, and I am here on behalf of the Maui
Economic Development Board and Women in Technology. Last summer, I took part of
an internship that they helped put together with the Center for Adoptive Optics out in
Kihei at the technology park. And I was part of that, I was able to take part of that and
was able to get a job out of that.
I was born on Maui and went to school on the mainland and decided I wanted to corne
back, work in Hawaii, but then I didn't know there's, what kind of job, technology jobs
they had in Hawaii. And I knew there was that technology park out in Kihei, and through
them I was able to get an internship and land a job at Techtron out in Kihei.
So, I really appreciate them giving me the opportunity to do the internship, and because
of that two of my friends, who are still in school, they are, they're doing the internship;
and hopefully, they can get experience and stay in Hawaii and get jobs. And they have a
lot of, I guess, other programs that, that help like build, build things out in Kihei, so that
will help bring the technology, technology jobs to Hawaii and hopefully build another
strong part other than just tourism and other stuff like that. Alright. Thank you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kimura. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
Clark Nakamoto.
Following Mr. Nakamoto is
very much for your testimony.
Aurora Young.
MR. NAKAMOTO: Thank you. Thank you very much. I'm the railroad at the prison of the
Kahului Senior Club. I represent about 200 seniors, and well, first of all, we want to
thank you for the support, supporting program that gives us seniors opportunity to go to
doctors and dentists and family, visit families, to the nutrition sites and a few annual
outings that we have, that's through MEO bus. And what I'm here is to ask you to,
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please, continue with the MEO bus for us; otherwise, we're going to be just stuck at home
doing nothing, just getting old, that's all.
So please, have that and because a lot of the seniors cannot come here tonight, because
there's no more bus and those who drive they don't drive at night, so I'm here with a list
of all the names that signed up here. I got them to sign this as a petition. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Nakamoto, if you can, please, our staff will take care of that.
Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you, Mr. Nakamoto. Aurora Young and
she'll be followed by Lisa Darcy.
MS. YOUNG: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Aurora Young. I'm a senior and I
ride the bus. The bus comes three times a week, Monday, Wednesday and Friday. I'm
here because when I do ride the bus, like when I go to the bank and I ask for a transfer,
but if I ride the public shuttle, they'll have to drop me where the bus site is, and I'll have
to walk to the bank. Like for instance, if they drop me off at Longs, then I would have to
walk to the bank and back again.
And I felt that we need your support, all the seniors need your support in the bus
transportation. Like if I do ride the public shuttle from Ilima, I walk to Luana Garden
and wait for the bus there, and then take me, it takes every two hours, so is with the MEO
that comes to Ilima Monday, Wednesday and Friday, it's two hours.
So, that's why I'm here tonight to ask your support in behalf of all the seniors who write,
they're wonderful, they help us in so many ways. There's even a bus driver that even
would go to First Hawaiian Bank and open the door for Francis until she gets in. So,
how, that's how much they are important to all of us, and I thank you for your support
and your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Young. Members, any questions for Ms. Young? Hearing
none, thank you very much. Lisa Darcy -- good evening, Ms. Darcy followed by
Lisa Rodrigues, officer.
MS. DARCY: Good evening, Council. My name is Lisa Darcy, and I come representing a
program called Hale 0 Lanakila. It's a psychiatric rehabilitation program that got started
last year here on Maui. I was asked to come by the State of Hawaii to start a program up
for people with mental illness, and its been a big challenge here on Maui for a couple of
reasons, and this is why I really need your help.
I had a group together to come tonight, but I was not really able to convince people. First
of all, first of all I was faced with the challenge of transporting everybody and how to
figure that and that became cumbersome. But also nobody really believed anything was
going to change if they came tonight or they spoke. And I am charged with helping
people to get their lives back and to recover hope, and I don't know how to go about it.

- 37 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005 (Kahului)

I looked through some of the numbers and tried to get some ideas on how to help people
get back to work. One of the vehicles for rehabilitation is work, and I think everyone of
us knows the value of work. If you were struggling with getting yourself up and getting
yourself together, finding transportation is a very significant obstacle. And I really need
the Council's help and the State's help to get people to a place where they can somehow
access transportation in a way that is normal, and MEO does a great job with the people
that we have right now. But I'm charged with normalizing peoples lives, which means if
you don't have a significant income or you don't have the ability, if you're taking
medications, to drive, just to be able to get up and to get involved in transportation
somehow is a very significant obstacle.
So I'm open to any ideas, any way that I can help make Maui County more accessible to
people that are home or in a back room or don't believe that they'll ever get back out to
the community. I would definitely like to, you know, participate in any sort of
discussions to be able to bring people back and say, it made a difference to go to the
Council, you know, it's worth it. I, I definitely should bring perhaps a list of testimonials;
nevertheless, but I've gotten to know quite a few of you and I'm, I'm, I'm not giving up.
And hopefully the numbers will keep changing and we'll get more people out, and we'll
have testimonials to say, thank you for helping people get back to work. We're, we're
counting on it.
So, I thank you very much for your time and I know you're working very hard on this. I
don't doubt that for a minute, and I don't envy your jobs. But thank you for the
opportunity to speak.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Darcy. Members, any questions for Ms. Darcy? Hearing none,
thank you. Officer. Following Officer Lisa Rodrigues, we have Jody Dias. And I think
Jody testified, but is Jody here? Yeah. I think Jody testified earlier, excuse me. Officer.
MS. RODRIGUES: Sorry in advance for reading. But I, what I have to say is very important.
My name is Lisa Rodrigues. Good evening, Council Chair Hokama, Budget Chair Kane
and Council Members. Thank you for your support with last year's, I'm sorry, last year's
increase, and thank you for the opportunity to speak this evening.
I'm wearing several hats tonight, but right now I'm speaking on behalf of the Maui
Humane Society as a board member, and I'm also representing the Chief of Police and the
Maui Police Department. The Police Department has an outstanding and valuable
working relationship and partnership with the Maui Humane Society. We support their
organization 100 percent for the, for the assistance they provide the Police Department
and for the public safety services they provide the community.
This service, this is a service that the Police Department is not equipped nor are we
trained to do. We have worked together in countless situations where time and time
again the Maui Humane Society's expertise and services were proven to be extremely
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invaluable. Like partnerships with the lifeguard, medics and the Fire Department, the
Maui Humane Society plays an extremely important role in public safety.
For example, there's a DOA on the roadway causing a hazard for, for, for drivers, or an
animal is out of control. It's the police who are calling for the assistance from the animal
control officers. When the Humane Society's hours were cut, that put a significant strain
on the patrol officers. Calls for service involving animals do not stop when business
hours are over. It is the police officers who respond to these calls for service, which in
turn takes away police manpower away from the general public, because we're dealing
with animal issues that, again, we are not trained nor are we equipped to handle.
I've been told many times that if I decided to quit my job as a police officer I would
always have a job with them. I could never do that job. For one, these officers endure,
for what these officers endure the pay is just inadequate. Personally, my heart and
emotions could not handle dealing with the displaced animals and having to do what has
to be done.
As a trained police officer, I find it very hard and I have a very hard time seeing how
they're put into similar situations that we're put into, and what I'm talking about are
different elements of people that we deal with, particularly those high on ice. And they're
only armed with pepper spray, that's this right here, that's all they're going in with, just
pepper spray.
Officer safety is very, is a very important issue that cannot be reiterated enough. Like
domestic violence situations that can be unstable and unpredictable, a situation where you
are taking someone's animal and someone's pet can be just as highly volatile and
explosive. These officers are not paid enough for what is asked of them. No. I could not
do their job, not many people can. Officers and staff compensation and retention should
be priority.
In closing, I elected to join the Board of the Directors because I see how important this
organization is to our community, not only for the known services that they provide, but
for the rarely seen and not so pleasant services as well, things we normally don't like to
talk about or even think about, but someone has to do it. There is some things that people
don't realize that are being done until they are not being done anymore.
The Humane Society is essential to our community, not only on the proactive standpoint
but also for the long-term, sustained programs and services that the public, that provide
public safety and prevention measures. So again, thank you for this opportunity to
represent the Police Department on behalf of the Humane Society.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Officer Rodrigues.
MS. RODRIGUES: And before I step away, I want to put on my mommy hat and put a plug in
for the Imua services. My husband and I are both officers, and we have a four-year old
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and a two-year old. And my two-year old is speech delayed and a special needs, and
Imua services has been very instrumental in helping our family get through this and, and
work with this through our son. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Officer. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Mr. Pete Sayer. Pete Sayer. And following Mr. Sayer, we have Lucienne deNaie.
MR. SAYER: Aloha ahiahi, Council Members.
CHAIR KANE: Aloha.
MR. SAYER: I'm only here because I, I paddle for Hana Canoe Club. I'm one of their reps, and
I know you came to Hana and they spoke on keikis. I have a problem, basically, by
coming out every weekend to paddle for the regatta season, and so MEO has been
outstanding, totally outstanding in their accomplishment for enabling the keiki to paddle
and be successful in, in what they're doing.
So, I'm here just to say, thank you and ask for your support and continued support and
maybe a little more money available to MEO for their programs that they ... you know, I,
I'm, I'm a, just a normal person, I have my own transportation, I can do what I want. But
there's a lot of families in Hana that, that have to work, they don't have the, the means to
say, yes, I'll drive you to Lahaina. And, and so MEO enables the kids to be able to join in
and, and have something special to do and not get involved in all the problems we see.
So once again, thank you, Council Members, and mahalo. A hui hou.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Sayer. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. Lucienne deNaie followed by Jeff Reiss.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you, all, for sitting through here. My name is Lucienne deNaie. I'm
speaking tonight as vice-president of Maui Tomorrow and I'm also, you know, I guess
like everybody else, you just see things that you say, these are wonderful things in our
community, they deserve support. So, always give a few of those on the laundry list.
One of those is Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, this is such an incredible change in this
place. If you went there ten years ago or even five years ago and you go there today, it is
amazing the transformation that a dedicated group of people can make and please, please,
please straighten out this mess with the Water Department and their funding and look at
other ways that can be helped, because this is a real resource for our future.
Instead of people like tearing down plants on the hillsides and, you know, actually
making it difficult for our native eco-systems to survive, they can go to Maui Nui and see
the same plants and buy samples and plant them in their yards. Its been such an
educational resource for folks; there's something going on there almost every day; and it's
a great place for our keiki to learn about volunteering too. Every time I go there, there's
some project going on.
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Also, continued funding for Community Work Day, partner with them practically like
every two months and they're the people who get the job done to get the trash out of here.
I just can't say enough about their can-do attitude, and I know they have just, you know, a
small budget compared to what they do. They have a small staff but they are amazing,
and they really give hope that there's something that we could do to get beyond the, the
glut that we have here today. I've, I've filled Matson containers, with their help, with
discarded things on our public beaches and public lands.
Also, the Paia Youth and Cultural Center, they are doing a tremendous job. I don't know,
you're going to go to Paia tomorrow and you'll probably hear from them, but they are
really stepping up to the plate finding a lot of their own funding, offering very creative
and engaging programs for our youth, and they're totally dedicated.
I want to also speak to what John Duey spoke to about the studies of the Na Wai 'Eha
streams, and this is a great investment for the County. It's not a lot of money over a
three-year period, because the County would be one of the investors in this project. But it
would yield information like the amount of recharge that streams could provide to the
aquifer if they flowed at certain rates. These are the kinds of data that the USGS are
going to be looking for in these stream studies.
And this is something every important for us to know, because this area that we're all
depending or that half of the people on Maui depend on for their drinking water has
changed a lot in the last ten years with the demise of agriculture in the area. So, the more
information we could get, this is going to be a bargain-basement price for, for the quality
of information. Please, do your best to put that in the budget.
And just to get personal here, Kaunoa Senior Center, it's a wonderful place, I'm a senior
center, I'm a client there, and a well ness center would be real wonderful. They have a
lively program and a lot of people there are looking forward to their golden years as ones
of health and vitality, so I think this would emphasize that. Thank you all and please do
increase funding for our human resources, too, staff for the Planning Department, Water
Department, Parks, Fire, Police. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. deNaie. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony. Jeff Reiss and following Mr. Reiss, we have Jan Dapitan.
MR. REISS: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Jeff Reiss. I'm the CFO of a company here
on Maui, Peletex, named for Pele, the Goddess of creation. We've developed an entirely
new method of air filtration, and we've received two U.S. patents. We have two
international patents.
And I'd like to speak on behalf of Maui Economic Development Board, because they
have helped us to establish our business and establish credibility, that I believe will help
to take Maui into the future by providing high-technology jobs and opportunities in the
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future. Without Economic Development Board, I wouldn't have known about an
opportunity that was offered through another Hawaii agency, a brand-new Hawaii
agency, that went to the Department of the Navy and secured $4 million, that they cut up
into manageable funding allotments.
And we were one of 20 in the State that received $200,000 from the Hawaii Technology
Development group. And this, this funding will help us to prove, it's called the proof of
concept on our technology. It's, it's a long process that. .. and I'm finding out that it keeps
getting longer and longer. And Maui Economic Development Board has been helpful in
helping us to find funding to do the proof of concept with our technology, and also
they've got great follow-up with going to conferences on the mainland and promoting,
doing business here on Maui.
They also leverage their, their work by teaming up with Team Hawaii, an organization on
Oahu, it's Enterprise Honolulu. And we're looking forward to being a real credit to Maui
and providing great jobs and an example of innovation and, and a great company that
would be, Maui would be proud to point to our company and say, this company
developed a world-class technology. And I wouldn't be able to tell you this except that
we have the patents now to prove that we really do have a world-class technology.
And I'll tell you it sounded pretty funny for a guy who -- some of you have seen me
around for a number of years -- for a guy to come up and tell you that we have a
world-class technology, and we do. And I believe that, that this technology will help to
put Maui on the map as a place where high technology can happen, and we owe a large
amount of our success so far to Maui Economic Development Board. Of course, MEO
gave us a very small loan a number of years ago, and I'd like to give credit to them. And
thank you very much for doing what you can to help diversify the economy of Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Reiss. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. Next we have Jan Dapitan.
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you, Chairman and Council. We recently met when we celebrated the
kickoff of the Great American Clean Up. I want you to know that it is going well. Many
new calls have come in. I think that Ray Emson(?) when he spoke before you and
quickly understood that we are the State leader, because you are supportive and so
supportive of us, and I thank you for that. And that has been in the past and I'm looking
forward to more.
We have some urgent issues and in this CrISIS of derelict vehicles and tires and
refrigerators and things that I thought in 1995 we were two years away from the end of
litter in Hawaii. And now, and now we're looking at a day-by-day, you know, not being
able to meet the calls that we get but wanting to. Looking forward to trying to develop a
stronger relationship with land or with the possibility of getting those permits that are
needed to handle metals and to deal with Freon.
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I hope that we'll work together this year, and I pledge that I'm there and ready. And we
do have some of those resources from the Keep America Beautiful to, to help with some
of those issues. I also want to thank partnerships, and, and tonight, I wanted to mention a
few and ask you to keep them working, because they have a great impact on us.
The Maui Nui Botanical Garden provides that, that information that I need regarding
native plants. Several years ago, we took a position that we would remove the alien
invasive along the shoreline, and we've worked in the Kanaha area with our AmeriCorps
teams and with volunteers, Kiwanis, and, and many of our citizens have been out there.
It is looking beautiful. If you have not walked that area, it's just about now in the first
phase, almost an 85 percent native plants. And it is just a transformation from what it
was if you can remember that kiawe thicket. That is something that the, the Maui Nui
Botanical Garden has helped us with, with our beautification projects. We want to plant
the native plants, and those Hawaiian plants that are ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... to us to
keep our partnerships as they are called. Yes. They fill Matson containers full of trash
many times from very heavily-dumped-on areas, so that means a lot to us. The Parks and
Recreation Department has been supportive and, and helpful in helping us remove a lot of
the big green waste. So, I thank you very much, look forward to this year and I do really
want to get those cars and tires and batteries off the highways.

CHAIR KANE: So do we. Thank you, Ms. Dapitan. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares. Ms. Dapitan, we have a question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: While you're walking up and you hear the question. Have
you been involved in any of the discussions regarding how to address this crisis that we
are in right now with no place to take our white goods and abandoned cars?
MS. DAPITAN: Early on, we were called in and, and we did sit with the Administration and a
combination at one point. Mike Molina, we provided some information when, when he
was studying that issue. Most recently, we are not sure what the, what the status is,
especially in regard to negotiations with private contractors .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Ms. Dapitan, Members? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Is there anybody else here who has not testified that would like to testify at
this time, now is your opportunity to come forward. Seeing nobody approaching. Thank
you very much, Kahului, for welcoming us.
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We'll take all the comments that we've heard tonight into serious consideration.
Tomorrow tonight, I believe, we're going to be in Paia. So, please leave early, and try not
to contribute to the, the logjam. Thank you very much, again.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

(excused: Council member Anderson)

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: This meeting for March 29, 2005, is adjourned .... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

8:17p.m.

bf:min:050329-kahului

Transcribed by: Ann Freitas
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